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NEVADA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
Board Agenda Memo


MEETING DATE:	January 23, 2024

TO:	Board of Supervisors

FROM: 	Erin Mettler – County Executive Office 
Craig Griesbach – Information and General Services Agency

SUBJECT:	Informational presentation regarding local fire district consolidation efforts with Nevada County Consolidated Fire Protection District, Penn Valley Fire Protection District, Ophir Hill Fire Protection District, and Rough and Ready Fire Protection District. 

RECOMMENDATION: Receive presentation. 

FUNDING: N/A

BACKGROUND: On March 20, 2023, the Rough and Ready Fire Protection District (RRFPD) filed a Resolution of Application for Dissolution with the Local Agency Formation Committee of Nevada County (LAFCO) and notified the public that Rough and Ready Station No. 59 would close by June 30, 2023. Subsequently, on April 11, 2023, Penn Valley Fire Protection District (PVFPD) filed a Resolution of Application for Annexation of the RRFPD territory, once the district was dissolved. Following the filed resolution, the Nevada County Consolidated Fire Protection District (NCCFD), PVFPD, Ophir Hill Fire Protection District (OHFPD), and RRFPD came together to find a solution to ensure that the RRFPD and other surrounding districts had adequate fire protection services in the immediate and long-term. 

On July 20, 2023, PVFPD and NCCFD submitted a gap funding request to Nevada County to operate Rough and Ready Fire Station #59.  On August 8, 2023, The County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution 23-429 approving a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between RRFPD, PVFPD, and NCCFD to support the Districts’ efforts to reorganize, and to operate the Rough and Ready Fire Station #59 prior to consolidation. This MOU approved gap funding in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000. Two amendments to this MOU have been approved by the Board of Supervisors to extend the MOU deadline and to allow flexibility to use some of the funding for necessary studies in support of analyzing the feasibility of consolidation. 

To support consolidation efforts, in May 2023, Board Chair Ed Scofield appointed Supervisor Sue Hoek and Supervisor Lisa Swarthout to co-chair the Fire Services Ad Hoc Committee. In addition to the Supervisors, the Ad Hoc Committee includes staff from the CEO’s office (Erin Mettler), County Counsel (Kit Elliot), Information and General Services (Craig Griesbach) and the Auditor-Controller Gina Will. The Executive Director of the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO), SR Jones, and the fire chiefs from each district also makeup this Committee. This Committee meets monthly to advise and provide recommendations on fire protection services and other associated issues with the delivery of fire services throughout the county. 

Recognizing that consolidation of NCCFD, PVFPD, OHFPD, and RRFPD agencies could achieve cost stability and efficient fire and emergency services response for Nevada County residents, for over a year these fire districts have been cooperatively working towards reorganization (annexation and consolidation). This effort is in alignment with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization act of 2000 (Government Code Section 56000 et seq. “CKH”). The purpose of this consolidation is to combine the resources, operations, and management of the four fire districts to enhance efficiency, effectiveness, and service delivery to the community. Several informal and formal reviews have been conducted both by the fire districts and LAFCO, including completion of an updated Countywide Fire and Emergency Services Municipal Service Review (MSR). The purpose of the MSR is to assess the level of fire and emergency response available in Nevada County, currently provided by ten different agencies, and evaluate the viability of consolidating agencies as a mechanism to address future service needs. While the MSR touches on financial capacity and limitations, it does not delve deep into the cost of future operational changes. The final review of this updated MSR was approved by the LAFCO Board on November 21, 2024. 

To better assess the financial viability of agency consolidation, the fire districts have contracted with Emergency Services Consulting International (ESCI) to complete a Cooperative Services and Financial Analysis. This report is needed to finalize a budget, plan, and ultimately, a CKH application to LAFCO for review and consideration. It is expected that this analysis will be completed by ESCI in early 2025. This analysis will be reviewed by the Fire Services Ad Hoc Committee and subsequently, an update will be brought before the Board of Supervisors in the spring of 2025 to review the status of the consolidation effort, any current or future gaps, and recommendations for next steps. 


Item Initiated and Approved by:	
· Craig Griesbach, Interim Information and General Services Agency Director
· Erin Mettler, Chief Fiscal Officer - Deputy County Executive Officer 
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